
SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 27 January 2021

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting

19 January 2021

PART 1
1. Apologies. 

2. To approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 8)

3. Urgent Items of Business, if any. (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman). 

4. Notification of Substitute Members, if any. 

5. Declaration of Interests:- 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
 Other Interests

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any. 
(At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 

accordance with Procedure Rule 15).

7. Parkwood Annual Performance Update (Presentation) (Pages 9 - 28)

8. Proposal for a Leisure Facility Working Group (Pages 29 - 34)

9. Green Infrastructure Strategy Delivery Plan Update (To Follow)

10. Work Programme (Pages 35 - 36)
Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:

 Chair’s Items
 Members’ Items

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 
scanning the code below:

Public Document Pack



Membership of Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel
Councillor R Ward (Chair) Councillor I Herdman (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Aberley Councillor G Bentley
Councillor C Brady Councillor J Davies
Councillor B Emery Councillor K Flunder
Councillor A Hart Councillor N Hawkins
Councillor K Hoptroff Councillor L Page
Councillor H Plimley Councillor D Price
Councillor J Redfern Councillor P Roberts
Councillor J Salt Councillor H Sheldon MBE



1

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
PANEL MEETING

Minutes

WEDNESDAY, 18 NOVEMBER 2020
PRESENT: Councillor R Ward (Chair) 

Councillors J Aberley, G Bentley, C Brady, B Emery, K Flunder, 
A Hart, N Hawkins, I Herdman, K Hoptroff, L Page, D Price, 
J Redfern, P Roberts, J Salt and H Sheldon MBE

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor B Johnson, I Plant, J T Jones, P Routledge, K Martin, 
S Scalise, L A Malyon, M Bowen, S E Ralphs MBE, P Wilkinson, 
M Gledhill, M A Deaville, J Porter and K J Jackson

APOLOGIES: Councillors H Plimley and I Whitehouse

19 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY.

Councillor Wilkinson substituted for Councillor Whitehouse.

20 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING.

DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 16 September 
2020 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

21 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY. (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 
PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN).

There were none.

22 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:-

Agenda Item Member Declaring 
Interest Nature of Interest

Cllr Aberley Other – Owns a property on 
Charles Street,  Cheadle.

Agenda Item 8 – Call-in 
of Cheadle Town Centre 

Projects.
Cllr Wilkinson Other – Owns  properties on 

High Street, Cheadle. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 18 November 2020

2

Agenda Item Member Declaring 
Interest Nature of Interest

Cllr Routledge Other – Wife works at 
Cheadle Hospital.

23 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY.

Question Received from Councillor Price:

“Could I please have confirmation that Councillor Wain has repaid the full cost of the 
creation and subsequent removal of the 'Council Permit Holder Only' space in Silk 
Street Car Park?”

Response from Councillor Wain – Portfolio Holder for Planning, Development 
& Property: 

“I have repaid the full cost of £545 + VAT regarding Silk Street Car Park. I stated 
that I would repay this sum at the last meeting of the Panel and I have honoured that 
commitment.”

As a supplementary question, Councillor Price asked what had been done to prevent 
individual Portfolio Holders making similar decisions in the future. In response, 
Councillor Ralphs advised that checks were in place and prior to any decisions being 
made, they would be discussed with her and other colleagues.

24 ALLIANCE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES ANNUAL PERFORMANCE 
REPORT & PRESENTATION

The Panel received an Alliance Environmental Services annual performance 
presentation from Kevin Melling and Jane Thomason. The topics covered included:-

 Financial Summary
 2020/21 Saving Plan Update
 High Level Draft Management Fee 2021/22
 Contractual Key Performance Indicators
 Service Update
 Response to Covid-19
 Strategic Outlook

The Chair thanked the Officers for the comprehensive update which contained many 
positive aspects, particularly during the difficulties attributed to Covid-19. Members 
also congratulated the staff for the excellent service they provided to residents. 

Members sought clarification around environmental plans for the company, the 
recycling target, bin loss, application for assisted collections, sound on electric 
vehicles, fly-tipping and gender balance of the workforce.

In reply, the Officers agreed to include environmental actions/ impact/ambitions in 
future updates, electric vehicles had the ability to have noise for a safety measure, 
new equipment would help to reduce loss of bins and the application for assisted 
collections would be reviewed by the Council’s Commissioning Team. Page 4



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 18 November 2020

3

It was acknowledged that a more joined up approach to prosecution of fly-tipping 
could be taken. Gender balance was important to the company and further 
information on this would be reported at a future meeting. 

Discussion also took place around improved understanding of what can be placed 
into each bin, electric and hydrogen powered vehicles, destination of plastics and 
recruitment agencies.

A specific issue with health and safety of residents during the winter months would 
be discussed outside of the meeting.

DECIDED: That the presentation be received.

25 CALL-IN OF THE CABINET REPORT - CHEADLE TOWN CENTRE 
PROJECTS

Cabinet members had considered a report which outlined proposals for the 
establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery Board, supported by a 
Stakeholder Panel, to oversee development and delivery of town centre projects 
including options appraisal for the emerging Cheadle town centre Masterplan and 
the High Streets Task Force programme of activity. The report also provided an 
update on progress with regards to the Cheadle Town Centre Options Appraisal 
Report and the High Streets Task Force and sought to agree next steps.

The decision made was: -

1. That the proposals for the establishment of a Cheadle Town Centre Delivery 
Board and Stakeholder Panel, as set out in the report be approved;

2. That the progress on current Cheadle town centre projects be noted.

Following this decision, call-in requests had been received from Councillors: - 
L. Malyon,  P. Wilkinson, K.  Martin, I. Whitehouse, I. Plant and G. Bentley.

The call-in request confirmed the following principles of decision making which they 
believed had not been adhered to:

 taking due regard of all relevant considerations and disregarding 
irrelevant considerations; 

 proportionality (i.e. the action will be proportionate to the desired 
outcome); 

 respect for human rights and equalities; 
 a presumption in favour of openness; and 
 clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 

Members debated in detail the points raised both in the Cabinet report and the Call-
in. Key points being:-

 The hospital was vital to serve the increased population, many services 
were provided from the site which included one of the trials for a Covid-19 
vaccination.

Page 5



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 18 November 2020

4

 Cheadle Leisure Centre was an excellent facility and had received funding 
from the community, it was well attended by various clubs and disability 
swim sessions were accessed from this pool. 

 A document dated 2009 within the masterplan for Cheadle, stated that 
there were no alternative sites for car parking in the town centre so 
therefore, it would not be possible to develop the Tape Street Car Park.   

 A 45 minute town centre site tour snapshot analysis of Cheadle was not 
acceptable.

 Members were pleased that Cheadle was being considered for 
investment, however, there were concerns as this had been promised 
previously - but little had been delivered in terms of regeneration.

 There was concern around prescriptive options being contained within the 
report, prior to any consultation being carried out with residents. 

 Tourism should be taken into account and it was suggested that a site for 
a hotel in the town was considered as part of the project.

 For Cabinet to include a councillor from Cheadle and more involvement 
with Cheadle Town Council to help resolve communication issues.

 A suggestion that the Stakeholder Panel and Cheadle Town Centre 
Delivery Board should be one entity.

Generally, members agreed that Cheadle required investment and were not against 
the projects but thought that the options for consideration should be removed from 
the report and led by the residents/businesses of Cheadle.

In response, Councillor Ralphs gave assurance that the projects hadn’t commenced 
and therefore no recommendations had been made. She re-iterated the importance 
of consultation with the residents of Cheadle and that Cheadle Hospital was not in 
the ownership of SMDC. Cheadle Town Centre Projects gave the opportunity for the 
town to receive investment and for improvements to be made, which would benefit 
the community.

Other members were also in agreement that Cheadle required investment and it was 
important that the projects were not delayed. 

The matter was then put to a named vote as follows:-

In favour of the Call-in:
Councillors: Bentley, Brady, Hawkins, Hoptroff, Page, Price, Salt and Wilkinson 
(substitute for Whitehouse) (8)

Against the Call-in:
Councillors: Aberley, Emery, Hart, Herdman, Roberts, Sheldon and Ward (7)

Abstentions:
Councillor: Flunder (1)

In accordance with the procedure for consideration of Call-ins at Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel meetings, where the Panel decided (by a vote) to refer back a 
decision to Cabinet for reconsideration, Cabinet would now reconsider within a 
further 10 working days, amending the decision or not, before adopting a final 
decision.

Page 6



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 18 November 2020

5

26 WORK PROGRAMME

The Panel considered its Work Programme and agreed the items listed, subject to, 
an item being added on Street Assets (Bus Shelters).

DECIDED: That the Work Programme for 2012-21 be agreed.

27 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC.

“That pursuant to Section 100A (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public in breach 
of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 100I (1) 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the 
paragraphs indicated.”

28 TO APPROVE THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING.

DECIDED – That the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 16th 
September 2020 be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair.

The meeting closed at 9.30 pm

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 9

A
genda Item

 7



PARKWOOD LEISURE UPDATE

● Parkwood remains a strong and stable business.
● Cash position remains the boards priority and this is in line with 

expectations.
● Strong Authority support continues and the JRS us has been maximised.
● Expectation that between the 2 almost 50 million will have been required 

until recovery.
● A headcount reduction has/ is being undertaken with regular reviews. 

33% of staff have left the business which equates to around 20% of FTEs.
● This has generally been based on roles where departments are no longer 

viable such as Catering, Creche, Group Exercise and Administration.
● Parkwood as one of the leading operators have been in daily discussions 

with UK Active and NGB’s.
● Atreemo system was launched in March 2020 to enable us to contact 

customers more easily and centralise feedback, enquiries and sales.
● Discussions regards longer term digital projects are ongoing with an ever 

changing set of customer expectations.
● Flexibility has been the name of the game!

P
age 10



COVID 19 COMPLIANCE 
The list below refers to the facilities when operational

● Full Covid-19 risk assessment completed and signed off by Primary 
Authority (Staffordshire Moorlands & High Peak).

● COVID-19 induction and training for all staff.
● Gym equipment spaced out to allow social distancing.
● Sports halls have been utilised to increase capacity of gym and group 

exercise.
● Cleaning stations throughout the centres.
● Sanitisers on entrance and exit plus more around the centre.
● Zoono application every 7 days (antiviral treatment).
● All touchpoints get a COVID sanitise every 2 hrs (gym equipment, door 

handles, taps, lockers etc).
● All customers given cleaning equipment on entrance to wipe machines 

before and after use.
● Face coverings mandatory in all non exercise areas.
● Social distancing stations in group ex to ensure safe distance from fellow 

users.
● Regular managers updates and NGB briefings.

P
age 11



COVID 19 COMPLIANCE

P
age 12



COVID 19 COMPLIANCE

P
age 13



P
age 14



● 2019/20 was the first operational year with the subcontract to Lex Leisure CIC. 

● The amendments to the 3 swimming pools lesson layouts have reduced the numbers on 

the waiting list to 0.  We now have the space to accommodate 3,326 (2578 currently in 

lessons). 

● Redecoration of all 3 Centres including new Leisure Centre brand colour schemes.  These 

works will continue into 2021.

● All 3 centres have had a number of resistance and weights machines replaced.

● The 3G pitch at Brough park now has a weekly usage of over 300 people.  33% of these 

bookings are girls teams and Leek Town ACFC (disability club) use the pitch weekly.

● Large disability gala held at South Moorlands on 19th November 2019.  Over 120 attended 

the event which was a huge success.  It was also attended by Swim England chair Sue 

Smith (MBE) and Paralympic gold medalist Janice Burton (MBE) who did the awards 

presentations.

 

P
age 15



 Brough Park Biddulph Valley South 
Moorlands

YTD Performance 
2020 309,089 244,045 256,840 

YTD Performance 
2019 294,284 243,034 258,065

Variance 
Performance 2019 vs 
2020 

14,805 1,011 (1,225)

● The period April 2019 to February 2020 exceeded the previous years performance 
by 14,591 visits.

● The period April 2019 to March 2020 the participation was down by 31,533 which 
shows the impact of COVID 19 on footfall.

P
age 16



P
age 17



•

Centre
Membership 
category March 2020 March 2019

Brough Park Leisure Centre
Health and 
Fitness 1380 1338

Brough Park Leisure Centre
Swimming 
Membership 71 68

Biddulph Valley Leisure Centre
Health and 
Fitness 1081 1060

Biddulph Valley Leisure Centre
Swimming 
Membership 81 71

South Moorlands Leisure Centre
Health and 
Fitness 639 645

South Moorlands Leisure Centre
Swimming 
Membership 84 77

P
age 18



● Gymnastics club at Biddulph Valley  now has a “squad” and have performed at various events 

including the Staffordshire Moorlands sports awards.

● Walking Football sessions now have 2  weekly block booking at SMLC with over 28 per week 

attending.

● This Girl Can netball coaching numbers growing with pathways to local clubs and leagues being 

formed. Over 50 girls per week attending.  

● Continued growth in Junior Gym attendance (11 - 15 yrs), 250 active members across Staffordshire 

Moorlands.

● Promotion of the rising stars initiative to support local athletes.  We have over 15 on this scheme on 

the contract from swimmers, disabled athletes to badminton players and obstacle course athletes.

● Continued partnership with Paddles disability swimming club with over 30 swimmers  a week 

traveling from as far as Birmingham.

● Walking for Health is going from strength to strength with attendance increasing by over 30%. Over 

350 people attending the walks in 19/20.

● Water safety talks were delivered to 14 Primary schools in the Moorlands giving over 3,000 children 

essential information on water safety.

P
age 19



Young people(5-18)

● Junior coaching programmes at all centres. Delivered football, netball, gymnastics and 
badminton sessions working close to capacity for boys and girls. Over 2,000 attendances 
per month. Pathways have been set up to local clubs/teams.

Older people (55+)

● Working in partnership with Everyone Health to deliver sessions for the over 50’s at 
Brough Park and Biddulph Valley. These sessions are aimed at falls prevention, smoking 
cessation and weight loss. We currently delivering to over 60 people per week and as they 
finish over 70% continue to attend sessions. Over 50’s aerobics continue at all centres 
achieving over 50 visits per week.  Our highest membership category is the over 55 with 
24% of members in this group.

Woman & girls

● Girls football attendance have now reached over 150 girls a week with 8 teams playing at 
Birchall playing fields.  Our netball programme for school girls is also reaching capacity 
with 30 girls attending 2 sessions a week.  Other activities include badminton, swimming, 
gymnastics, dance and trampoline.  51% of the gym members are female

ACTIVE COMMUNITIES AND SPORTS 
DEVELOPMENT

P
age 20



People in lower social grades (NSEC 5-8)
● The leisure key gives 50% discount on all facilities and also a reduced monthly 

membership fee. Over 72,000 key card visits were recorded in 2019/20 and 23% of the total 
membership take the leisure key membership.  

People with illness or disability
● Water wellbeing project will give those people who are inactive or have long term health 

conditions the opportunity to do a form of exercise in the water without the impact of 
land training. Thinking active cognitive stimulation therapy at Biddulph meets weekly 
and gives people with early dementia the stimulation required to help offset the 
condition. Diabetes group meet at Brough Park and Biddulph giving people with 
diabetes the support required to deal with their condition.

Steps to health
● Steps to health in the Moorlands is a self funded GP referral scheme that gives exercise as 

the prescription for people with many health problems from obesity, heart disease to 
mental health.  The scheme delivers to over 500 people a year with a 80% retention rate 
through memberships or reduced PAYG. This scheme has been running for over 15 years 
but has been self funded by Lex leisure for over 10 yrs.

ACTIVE COMMUNITIES AND SPORTS 
DEVELOPMENT

P
age 21



● Simple booking process- Clearly higher priority!
● Allows members to track progress.
● Easy access control via digital barcode.
● Participate in monthly challenges. 
● Win prizes (Apple watch won by BPLC member).
● Request a trainer option for PT and member 

programmes.
● Home workouts available which allowed us to 

engage with customers through lockdown. 
● Improve interaction with members via push 

messages
● 2,934 members in Staffordshire Moorlands 

currently using the app.  120% increase.

P
age 22



● 38% of our feedback is about group exercise.
● 28% of our feedback is about swimming lessons.
● 18% of our feedback is about customer service.
● 7% of our feedback is about cleanliness.
● Group ex and customer service service are our most 

complimented areas with a 98% satisfaction rate.
● Cleanliness of wet changing facilities and the website are our 

worst performing area. 
● 90% of cleaning complaints relate to wet changing rooms.
● Customer feedback is an standing agenda item on all site 

meetings to review and adjust plans accordingly. 
● Collated feedback and actions shared with all staff via staff 

newsletters

P
age 23



BPLC
● Decoration around centre.
● Lockers installed in dryside changing rooms.
● Wetside pre swim showers refurbished.
● LEX Leisure funding of Sensory Lighting around 

the Learner Pool to assist disability sessions and 
public swim sessions (moved to 2021).

SMLC
● New lockers installed in wet changing rooms.
● Decoration around the centre completed.
● Dryside changing rooms fully refurbished.

BVLC
● Decoration of gym, cafe and changing rooms 

completed.
● Pool Cover replaced.
● New Wattbike purchased. 

P
age 24



PLANNED AUTHORITY CAPITAL WORKS

Works Completed:
● Brough Park

○ The pool structural work have been completed. Actual cost was £178k vs a 
budget of £190k. 

Planned works for 2020/21
● Brough Park

○ Roofing Works. PPM currently attaining quotes so works are planned for March 
2021. 

● Biddulph Valley
○ Roofing works started October 2020 and will be completed in December 2020. 

Actual cost was £280k vs a budget of £320k.
○ External wall cladding replacement started October 2020. Work has commenced 

and new windows are scheduled to be fitted by February. Costs are part of 
roofing works so a saving of £170k. 

○ Fire alarm system to be replaced and are scheduled for March 2021.

P
age 25



COMPLETED BROUGH PARK POOL WORKS

● Previous structural surveys 
identified that work was required 
to the structure.

● External windows were failing due 
to movement and corrosion.

● Work started in August 2020 and 
completed in November 2020.

● Steels cut out and replaced.
● Window replacement and 

ventilation refurb included in the 
specIfications.

● Actual costs was £178k vs £190k 
budget. 

P
age 26



● Working with SMDC to promote healthy living through Sport England initiatives. 
Concentrating on mental health and inactivity from the impact of COVID 19.

● To deliver the key strategic objectives.

● Work closely with the Authority on landlord maintenance items and upgrades.

● Using Atreemo to deliver improved customer communications. 

● Improved suite of dashboards so data can influence performance.

● Increase use of technology to further enhance the customer experience.

● Continue to develop training modules to help train and educate staff.

● Covid-19 has forced us to do a ongoing workforce review.

● Working with local sports clubs to ensure that they understand Covid requirements and 
can operate effectively

● The sports facilities in Staffordshire Moorland will be a major part of rebuilding the 
community mental and physical health after the pandemic.  

CONTINUAL IMPROVEMENT - THE WAY 
FORWARD

P
age 27



P
age 28



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel

27 January 2021

TITLE: Proposal for a Leisure Facility Working 
Group

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Mark Deaville - Deputy Leader & 
Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Sports

CONTACT OFFICER: Robert Wilks - Principal Officer (Leisure and 
Recreation)

WARDS INVOLVED: All

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To update the Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel on the progress of 
the second stage of the Council’s Leisure Consultancy work and for the 
Committee to consider the formation of a Member working group to support the 
development of a ‘Leisure Transformation Plan’.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel:

 Notes the progress of stage two of the Council’s Leisure Consultancy work.

 Considers the formation of a Member working group to support the 
development of a ‘Leisure Transformation Plan’.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 On 20 November 2019, the Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
considered a report which set out the work required to establish detailed plans 
for future capital investment and management options for the Council’s leisure 
centres. 

3.2 In October 2020, FMG Consulting were awarded the contract to lead this piece 
of work which is scheduled to be delivered between 1 November 2020 and 30 
June 2021. Following completion of the consultancy work, final reports will be 
produced and presented to Members for consideration towards the end of 2021. 

3.3 Under a working title of the ‘Leisure Transformation Plan’ the scope of the work 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



which FMG Consulting is required to develop is set out below;

 To review the current evidence base regarding participation in physical 
activity and sport, and usage of the leisure centres in line with Sport 
England Strategic Outcomes Planning Guidance (SOPG).

 Produce a summary report which identifies any missing pieces of 
information and what further work or consultation may be required.

 To produce a detailed feasibility study and associated capital investment 
plan for our Leisure Centres in Biddulph, Cheadle and Leek.

 To produce a clear and affordable capital investment plan for these 
facilities.

 To produce a detailed appraisal as to the potential future management 
options for the Alliance Leisure Centres.

3.4 A plan for wider stakeholder and community consultation is currently being 
developed. In order to ensure Members are engaged with the process and 
consultation, it is recommended that a Member working group from this Panel 
is established. A similar working group is also being proposed for HPBC.

3.5 It is proposed that the working group would consider the main aspects of the 
Leisure Transformation Plan as follows: 

 To consider the findings of the needs analysis and review of current 
evidence base. 

 To consider the proposed capital investment options that have been 
identified to meet the needs as identified.

 To consider the future management options for the leisure centres.

3.7 Should the Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel approve the 
recommendation to establish the working group, it is proposed that a working 
group be made up of 7 members be established, politically balanced as follows:

 Conservative & Independent – 4
 Labour – 2
 Independents – 1

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 This report links to Aim 1 of the Council’s Corporate Plan “To help create a 
safter and healthier environment for our communities to live and work”.

To deliver Aim 1 of the objective “Provision of sports facilities and leisure 
opportunities focused upon improving health”.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 The work being undertaken by the appointed consultants will be ongoing for a 
period of approximately six months. In order to engage the elected members in 
this process there are two options available:

Page 30



1. To not establish a Member working group - By not involving Members via a 
structured method of engagement, such as a Member working group, a risk 
is presented that the views of Members and their aspirations are not fully 
considered in the development of the Leisure Transformation Plan.

2. To create a Member working group – This will ensure members are fully 
informed of the process being followed in regard to the Leisure 
Transformation Plan and gives them an opportunity to shape the outcomes 
(Recommended).

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel – 20.11.19 Robert Wilks
Principal Officer (Leisure and Recreation)
robert.wilks@highpeak.gov.uk

6. Detail

6.1 On 20 November 2019, Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
considered a report which set out the work required to establish detailed plans 
for future capital investment and management options for the Council’s leisure 
centres.

6.2 Approval was given to recruit external consultancy support to assist the Council 
to develop affordable, ambitious and deliverable plans for its leisure centres, 
working closely with Sport England and other key stakeholders and partners.

6.3 In October 2020, FMG Consulting were awarded the contract to lead this piece 
of work which is scheduled to be delivered between 1 November 2020 and 30 
June 2021. The final reports will then be produced and presented to Members 
for consideration towards the end of 2021. 

6.4 Under a working title of the ‘Leisure Transformation Plan’ the scope of the work 
which FMG Consulting is required to develop is set out below:

 To review current evidence base relevant to participation in physical 
activity and sport, and usage of the leisure centres in line with Sport 
England Strategic Outcomes Planning Guidance (SOPG).

 Produce a summary report which identifies any missing pieces of 
information and what further work or consultation may be required.

 To produce a detailed feasibility study and associated capital 
investment plan for our Leisure Centres in Biddulph, Cheadle and Leek.

 To produce a detailed appraisal as to the potential future management 
options for the Council’s Leisure Centres.

Page 31



6.5 FMG Consulting will undertake a three stage approach to delivering the scope 
of work set out above, including a detailed review of relevant evidence base, 
participation and usage trends, stakeholder consultation, design development 
of capital investment options and business planning for each future 
management option; 

 Phase 1: Outcomes and Insight
 Phase 2: Interventions
 Phase 3: Commitment

6.6 It is important to note that some aspects within each phase will occur 
simultaneously to reflect interrelated issues and the challenging circumstances 
of delivering this piece of work during the current coronavirus pandemic.

 
6.7 The table below details the structure of meetings and their frequency that will 

occur to ensure that the Leisure Transformation Plan is managed effectively and 
with the involvement of all relevant service areas within the Council.

Name Frequency
Leisure Commissioning Board Quarterly
Project Steering Group Monthly
Alliance Management Team/Heads of 
Service Briefings

Bi-Monthly

6.7 Since their appointment, FMG have undertaken a series of internal meetings 
with Heads of Service representing key service areas such as Regeneration, 
Planning, Finance and Assets to understand in greater detail the key 
considerations and risks that may impact upon the successful development of 
the Leisure Transformation Plan within the timescales set.

6.8    Whilst a plan for wider stakeholder and community consultation is also being 
developed. Consideration is now needed as to how Members will engage with 
the process. 

6.9 In order to address this, it is proposed that the Service Delivery Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel consider forming a Member working group to assist with the 
continued development of the project and to ensure the project outcomes are 
sufficiently informed and scrutinised by Members. 

6.10 It is proposed that the working group consider the main aspects of the Leisure 
Transformation Plan as follows: 

 To consider the findings of the needs analysis and review of current 
evidence base. 

 To consider the proposed capital investment options that have been 
identified to meet the needs identified.

 To consider the future management options for the Alliance leisure 
centres.

6.11 It is proposed that a working group of 7 members be established politically 
balanced as follows:

Page 32



 Conservative & Independent – 4
 Labour – 2
 Independents – 1

6.12 Once the working group has been established it is recommended that it agrees 
the frequency of its meetings at its first meeting. Due to the timescales of work 
being conducted by FMG it is proposed that approximately 3-4 meetings of the 
working group would be required.

6.13 An equivalent working group has been proposed at HPBC. The work being 
undertaken by FMG is Alliance wide and whilst each working group will look at 
the needs analysis and proposed investment needs for their individual authority 
area the review of management options for the Alliance needs to be considered 
jointly in order to ensure we have a management option which is agreed jointly. 

6.14 A summary of the progress made by the working group and the outcomes of the 
FMG work will be reported back to this Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel in due course.

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Work Programme 2020/21

Date Item Contact Officer
3 June 2020
MEETING CANCELLED Cheadle Town Centre Projects

Leek Market Hall Update
22 July 2020

COVID-19 Pandemic – Reinstatement of Services and Economic 
Recovery

S Porru/E Patterson

Leek Market Hall – Call-in Report S Porru
16 September 2020

COVID-19 Pandemic – Reinstatement of Services and Economic 
Recovery
Call-In of the Cabinet Decision to Dispose of Plot 12-15 Victoria 
Business Park

18 November 2020
AES Performance Update N Kemp
Call-in of Cabinet Report Cheadle Town Centre Projects S Porru

27 January 2021
Parkwood Annual Performance Presentation N Kemp
Proposal for a Leisure Facility Working Group Report R Wilks
Green Infrastructure Strategy Delivery Plan Update J Bagnall

17 March 2021
Staffordshire Moorlands Market Operations M Briand
Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme Update J Bagnall
Leek Market Hall (update on appointment of consultants for options 
study and timetable for consultation)

M Briand

Cheadle Town Centre Projects S Porru

TBC

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 10



Development of a new Parking Strategy K Webster
Street Assets (Bus Shelters)

P
age 36


	Agenda
	2 To approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	7 Parkwood Annual Performance Update (Presentation)
	8 Proposal for a Leisure Facility Working Group
	10 Work Programme

